Henderson City-County
Planning Commission
February 6, 2018
The Henderson City-County Planning Commission held their regular
meeting February 6, 2018 at 6:00 p.m., at the Henderson Municipal
Center, 222 First Street, 3rd floor assembly room. Members present:
Chairman Herb McKee, David Williams, Mac Arnold, Dickie Johnson,
Bobbie Jarrett, Kevin Richard, Rodney Thomas, David Dixon, Kevin
Herron, Gray Hodge, Gary Gibson, and Doug Bell. Attorney Tommy
Joe Fridy was present via telephone.
Staff present: Director Brian Bishop, Assistant Director Claudia Wayne,
Theresa Curtis, Heather Lauderdale and Chris Raymer.
(The following minutes were transcribed from an audio recording of
the meeting on February 6, 2018. The audio recording is on file at the
Planning Commission office and will be retained)
MEETING BEGAN AT 6:00PM
Chairman McKee: Let’s call this February 6, 2018 meeting of the
Henderson City-County Planning Commission to order. Madame Clerk
will you please call the roll?
All accounted for.
The Chair will entertain a motion to go into Public Hearing.
MOTION WAS MADE BY MAC ARNOLD, SECONDED BY DOUG
BELL TO GO INTO PUBLIC HEARING.
Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second; all in favor signify
by saying aye. Are there any opposed?
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ALL IN FAVOR: AYE
OPPOSED: NONE
Chairman McKee: We are in public hearing.
Next on the agenda are the minutes of the January 2, 2018 meeting. If
you have had an opportunity to review those; are there any additions or
corrections that you would like to offer?
MOTION WAS MADE BY KEVIN RICHARD, SECONDED BY
GARY GIBSON TO APPROVE THE JANUARY 2, 2018 PLANNING
COMMISSION MINUTES.
Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second. All those in favor
signify by saying aye.
ALL IN FAVOR: AYE
Chairman McKee: Are there any opposed?
OPPOSED: NONE
Chairman McKee: Minutes are approved.
Next on the agenda is #1081 Assignment of Zoning Classification in
Conjunction with Annexation. Mrs. Wayne, are you going to lead that
Staff Report?
Claudia Wayne: Yes sir.
Chairman McKee: Please proceed.
Claudia Wayne: #1081 ASSIGNMENT OF ZONING
CLASSIFICATION IN CONJUNCTION WITH ANNEXATIONSubmitted by the City of Henderson for the property located in
Henderson County, at 406 Old Corydon Road (also known as Lot 5,
Block 1, Walter Miller Subdivision (PID #46D-4); 412 Old Corydon
Road, (also known as Lot 1, Block 1, Walter Miller Subdivision
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(PID#46D-5), and 422 Old Corydon Road (also known as Lot 6, Block
2, Walter Miller Subdivision (PID#46D-7).
The request from the City of Henderson to annex 1.576 acres from
County of Henderson to the City of Henderson which is currently zoned
Agriculture to go to City Medium Residential District (R-2).
The owners are Charles McAtee, Leslie and Donna Cannon, and Francis
and Etta Jenkins.
The role of the Planning Commission is to have the Public Hearing, and
to recommend to the City the appropriate, new zoning classification.
Future Land Use map depicts this area as Medium Density Residential,
Residential 1 or Residential 2.
There are Single Family Residences in the area, all the urban services
are available to the sites. There has been a sewer extension in that area
recently.
The Planning Staff recommends assignment of Medium Density
Residential (R-2) zoning classification and approve amending to the
Comprehensive Plan to be consistent with the City’s final action.
If you have any questions, I’ll try to answer them for you.
Chairman McKee: Commissioners, questions for staff?
Is there anyone who would like to speak on behalf of this request before
we open it up to the public comment?
Dickie Johnson: Don’t look like it.
Chairman McKee: Seeing none…
David Williams: Mr. Chairman, I would…
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Chairman McKee: Please.
David Williams: Mrs. Wayne, what are the changes that have occurred
to the basic character of that neighborhood?
Claudia Wayne: The sewer extension. There are single-family residents
in that area.
David Williams: Those are existing…
Claudia Wayne: The Comprehensive Plan depicts that area as being
residential.
David Williams: Ok. I have no other questions, thank you.
Chairman McKee: Is there anyone who would like to speak for or
against this reclassification of zoning of this property? Would you like
to speak for or against?
Seeing none, our job is to recommend to the City the zoning of this
property be changed from Agriculture to R-2.
Claudia Wayne: Medium density, uh huh, R-2.
Chairman McKee: The Chair will entertain a motion.
Dickie Johnson: Mr. Chairman I would like to make a motion that we
recommend to the city to rezone #1081 from County Agricultural to City
Medium Density Residential (R-2).
Chairman McKee: Is that a sufficient motion staff?
Claudia Wayne: We have some recommendations.
Brian Bishop: Mr. Johnson, if you wouldn’t mind to read the one that’s
prepared in the packet.
Dickie Johnson: Alright.
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Claudia Wayne: Thank you.
MOTION WAS MADE BY DICKIE JOHNSON AND SECONDED
BY GARY GIBSON THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMENDS MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT
(R-2) ZONING ASSIGNMENT TO THE ABOVE PARCELS (PID#
46D-4; 46D-5; AND 46D-7), AND I LEAVE THE MOTION OPEN
FOR OTHER MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO
ADD FINDINGS OF FACT IN SUPPORT OF THIS MOTION,
 STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVAL BECAUSE THE
PROPOSAL IS COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY’S
ADOPTED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN.
 CHANGES HAVE OCCURRED TO ALTER THE BASIC
CHARACTER OF THE AREA TO SUPPORT THIS
REQUEST IN THAT THERE HAS BEEN A SEWER LINE
EXTENSION CONSTRUCTED TO SERVE THE EXISTING
RESIDENCES.
 THE EXISTING SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES WERE
CONSTRUCTED BETWEEN 1957 AND 1963.
THE
EXISTING RESIDENCES ARE COMPATIBLE WITH THE
SURROUNDING USES IN THAT THERE ARE OTHER
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES IN THE AREA.
 THE PROPERTY IS SERVED BY ADEQUATE UTILITIES.

THE PROPOSED MAP AMENDMENT (ANNEXATION) IS IN
AGREEMENT WITH THE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE
COMPREHENSIVES PLAN, IN THAT:
 WISELY PLAN FOR LAND USES IN APPROPRIATE
LOCATIONS TO MAXIMIZE QUALITY DESIGN AND
MINIMIZE THE ADVERSE IMPACTS OF DEVELOPMENT.
(BALANCING LAND USE GOAL #1).
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 GUIDE DEVELOPMENT TO EXISTING CENTRALIZED
AREAS SERVED BY ADEQUATE INFRASTRUCTURE TO
AVOID DECENTRALIZED AND SCATTERED
DEVELOPMENT (BALANCING LAND USE OBJECTIVE A).
 PROMOTE STABILITY OF EXISTING NEIGHBORHOODS
AND ALL ASPECTS OF HOUSING INCLUDING INFILL,
REDEVELOPMENT, AND ENCOURAGE NEW
DEVELOPMENT WHERE APPROPRIATE (HEALTHY
NEIGHBORHOODS A).
Dickie Johnson: That’s my motion.
Chairman McKee: Do you need the rest of that?
Brian Bishop: Can he just refer it; can we make a reference to it?
Dickie Johnson: I’ll reference the rest of it.
Chairman McKee: You’ll reference it?
Dickie Johnson: Yeah.
David Dixon: Second.
Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second, is there any
discussion? Madame Clerk, will you please call the roll?
ALL IN FAVOR: AYE
OPPOSED: NONE
Chairman McKee: The Planning Commission will recommend to the
City.
Next on the agenda is Subdivision Regulations Variance. Mr. Bishop,
are you going to lead the Staff Report?
Brian Bishop: Yes sir.
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Chairman McKee: Please proceed.
Brian Bishop: This is submitted by Robert & Lisa Parke are requesting
a variance from Article V., Section 5.3, 1(A) of the Henderson CityCounty Subdivision Regulations: Frontage Required on Improved
Roads. Section 5.3, 1(A) requires one hundred feet (100’) of frontage on
a publicly maintained road or street. The applicant is requesting two (2)
fifty feet (50’) variances to allow for two (2) fifty feet (50’) widths at the
rear access strips (flag pole portion of proposed lots).
You may recognize this from last meeting. The previous meeting, the
proposed entrances were on the North side of the property. They are
now proposed for the South side of the property.
Staff met with the County Engineer and with Mr. Branson from Branson
Surveys to kind of plan out a better access point; an access plan for this
property.
What you have now are two (2), one-hundred foot (100’) stretches of
property that will contact the road directly. The issue is, and the reason
why they need the fifty-foot (50’) variance, is that they will shrink down
to fifty-feet (50’) along the flagpole. The reason why this is done is
because the owner does not want to relinquish ownership of the lake that
is on the property. So, to make that possible, these had to be shrunk to
fifty-feet (50’).
The County Engineer recommends approval, and staff also recommends
approval. I will do my best to answer any questions you may have.
Chairman McKee: If there were emergency services concerns and site
distance concerns, Staff and the County Engineer believe those have
been cured?
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Brian Bishop: We do believe that has been cured. The addresses will be
in sequence now. Mrs. Lauderdale could answer that better than I can if
you guys would like a more detailed answer. And, this location is the
best location for an entrance, which they will share.
I went out today and took some pictures. You’ll notice the two (2)
pictures are from where the existing entrance is; you can see roughly a
half-mile to three-quarters of a mile this way. You can see for over a
mile this way. This is the existing driveway that they will use.
This is from the access point that we looked at last month. As you can
tell is not safe, it is very close to this hill which is a dangerous access
point. Then this is looking from the second driveway North further up
Tillman-Bethel.
Chairman McKee: Are there any questions for staff?
David Williams: Mr. Bishop, is this layout you think the best suited for
this lot?
Brian Bishop: I believe it is sir.
David Williams: Ok.
Chairman McKee: Any other questions for staff?
Brian Bishop: I believe Mr. Branson is here if you would like to ask
him any questions as well.
Chairman McKee: Mr. Branson, would you like to speak to the issue?
Dennis Branson: I think Mr. Bishop has handled it very well.
Chairman McKee: Very well. Anyone else?
Hearing and seeing none, the Chair will entertain a motion.
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MOTION WAS MADE BY DAVID DIXON AND SECONDED BY
RODNEY THOMAS TO MOVE TO APPROVE THE SUBDIVISION
REGULATION VARIANCE REQUESTED BY ROBERT AND LISA
PARKE, A VARIANCE FROM ARTICLE V, SECTION 5.3, 1(A) OF
THE HENDERSON CITY-COUNTY SUBDIVISION
REGULATIONS CONCERNING FRONTAGE ON IMPROVED
ROADS. SECTION 5.3, 1(A) REQUIRES ONE-HUNDRED FEET
(100’) OF FRONTAGE ON A PUBLICLY MAINTAINED ROAD.
THIS APPLICATION IS REQUESTING TWO (2), FIFTY-FEET
(50’) VARIANCES TO ALLOW FOR FIFTY-FEET (50’) WIDTHS
AT THE REAR ACCESS STRIPS (FLAG POLE PORTION OF THE
PROPOSED LOTS).
Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second, is there any
discussion? Madame Clerk, will you please call the roll?
ALL IN FAVOR: AYE
OPPOSED: NONE
Chairman McKee: So mote it be.
The Chair will entertain a motion to go out of Public Hearing.
MOTION WAS MADE BY KEVIN RICHARD AND SECONDED BY
GARY GIBSON TO GO OUT OF PUBLIC HEARING.
Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second, any discussion? All
in favor signify by saying aye. Are there any opposed?
ALL IN FAVOR: AYE
OPPOSED: NONE
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Chairman McKee: We are out of Public Hearing. Next on the agenda is
the Finance Report for January 2018. Mrs. Curtis, you’re going to lead
the Staff Report for that?
Theresa Curtis: Yes sir.
Chairman McKee: Questions for Mrs. Curtis?
Theresa Curtis: We’re at fifty-eight percent (58%) of budget. We just
need a recommendation.
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOBBIE JARRETT AND SECONDED
BY MAC ARNOLD TO APPROVE THE FINANCE REPORT FOR
JANUARY 2018 AS PRESENTED.
Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second, any discussion? All
in favor signify by saying aye. Are there any opposed?
ALL IN FAVOR: AYE
OPPOSED: NONE
Chairman McKee: Next on the agenda is the Bond Report.
Wayne, are you going to lead the Staff Report?

Mrs.

Claudia Wayne: Yes sir.
Chairman McKee: Please proceed.
Claudia Wayne: This is Graystone Subdivision, Sections 5A and 5B.
The City Engineer did his figuring and we do have sufficient amount of
money to cover if anything happened. He recommended to extend it one
(1) year and leave the amount the same.
MOTION WAS MADE BY MAC ARNOLD AND SECONDED BY
RODNEY THOMAS TO APPROVE THE BOND REPORT AS
SUBMITTED.
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Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second, any discussion? All
in favor signify by saying aye. Are there any opposed?
ALL IN FAVOR: AYE
OPPOSED: NONE
Chairman McKee: The Bond Report is approved.
Next on the agenda, Alexander Farm Subdivision Proposed Lots 6 &
7 Preliminary. Mr. Bishop, are you going to lead the Staff Report?
Brian Bishop: Yes sir.
Chairman McKee: Please proceed.
Brian Bishop: This is submitted by Brad Alexander, and Larry and
Mary Alexander for the property located in Henderson County on Hwy
351, (adjacent to 15100 Hwy 351), and is Parcel ID#107-54 containing
approximately 16.935 acres. The applicants are requesting Preliminary
approval for two (2) lots.
This is the site as it exists now. What the applicant is proposing is two
(2) lots, Lots 6 which is roughly 7.4 acres, and Lot 7 which is roughly
9.5 acres. This would be a Major Subdivision.
The applicant is proposing a fire hydrant at the intersection of Alves
Ferry and Briscoe Benton Road. This fire hydrant would need to be
bonded or built before the Final Plat is approved.
The applicant has requested a sidewalk waiver because this is pretty far
out in the county, and there are no existing sidewalks.
Chairman McKee: We’ll handle that as a separate issue.
Brian Bishop: I’m sorry?
Chairman McKee: We’ll handle that as a separate issue.
Brian Bishop: Yes sir, I just wanted to make sure everyone knows that’s
what the request was.
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The topography all drains to the road. The topography and drainage will
be addressed at the individual Site Plan level when they apply for the
building permit. There’s a note on the plat that requires them to seek
drainage approval from the County Engineer.
I’ll do my best to answer any questions you may have at this time, and I
believe Mr. Krahwinkel is here to address it from a technical side.
Chairman McKee: Questions for Mr. Bishop and staff?
David Dixon: The address is Hwy 351?
Brian Bishop: The current lot is because it actually has road frontage
over here; the new lots will have an address off Briscoe-Benton Road.
Chairman McKee: Further questions? Mr. Krahwinkel did you wish to
make a statement on behalf of the applicant?
Cliff Krahwinkel: No, Mr. Bishop has covered everything; I’ll be glad
to answer any questions anyone may have.
Chairman McKee: Thank you sir.
Any other comments? Hearing none, the Chair will entertain a motion.
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOBBIE JARRETT AND SECONDED
BY MAC ARNOLD TO APPROVE THE ALEXANDER FARM
SUBDIVISION PROPOSED LOTS 6 & 7 PRELIMINARY
SUBMITTED BY BRAD ALEXANDER, AND LARRY AND MARY
ALEXANDER FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED IN HENDERSON
COUNTY ON HWY 351. SUBJECT TO THE FIRE HYDRANT
BEING INSTALLED OR BONDED IN ADVANCE OF THE FINAL
PLAT.
Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second…
David Williams: Do we need conditional to the hydrant?
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Brian Bishop: Excuse me?
David Williams: Do we need conditional to the hydrant?
Claudia Wayne: It’s a condition on the final approval.
Brian Bishop: The Final Plat cannot be approved unless it is either
bonded or installed.
Bobbie Jarrett: Does it need to be subject to?
Brian Bishop: I don’t think we have done it that way in the past. Mr.
Fridy, do you have a suggestion on that by any chance?
Tommy Joe Fridy: We haven’t done it what way?
Brian Bishop: We haven’t made the Preliminary Plat subject to the
bonding or installation of a fire hydrant; we normally deal with that on
the Final Plat.
Tommy Joe Fridy: It’s good to do. I agree that we should do it; that the
motion should include that it either be built in advance of the Final Plat
approval or bonded.
Brian Bishop: Did you hear that Commissioner Jarrett?
Bobbie Jarrett: Yes.
Chairman McKee: Can we add that to your motion Commissioner
Jarrett?
Bobbie Jarrett: Yes.
Chairman McKee: And to the second?
Mac Arnold: Yes.
Chairman McKee: Anything else we need to cover?
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Brian Bishop: You will need a motion for the sidewalk waiver as well.
Chairman McKee: After we do this one.
Madame Clerk, will you please call the roll?
ALL IN FAVOR: AYE
OPPOSED: NONE
Chairman McKee: Now the Chair will entertain a motion to waive the
sidewalk requirement on this Preliminary Plat.
MOTION WAS MADE BY DICKIE JOHNSON AND SECONDED
BY DOUG BELL TO APPROVE THE WAIVER OF THE
SIDEWALK REQUIREMENT ON THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT.
Chairman McKee: We have a motion and a second. Madame Clerk will
you please call the roll?
David Williams: Mr. Bishop, would you like to bring up the reasons a
waiver would be acceptable?
Brian Bishop: Yes. Normally things that we would address in a
sidewalk waiver would be topography, if there’s potential damage to
existing mature trees, if there are no sidewalks in the area or no likely
connectivity in the near future.
David Williams: Ok, so none of those; I don’t know about the trees but
no likely connectivity?
Brian Bishop: No sir.
David Williams: Ok.
Chairman McKee: Anything else anybody would like to add? We have
a motion and a second, Madame Clerk will you please call the roll?
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ALL IN FAVOR: AYE
OPPOSED: NONE
Chairman McKee: Sidewalk waiver is approved.
Next on the agenda are the Committees. Included in your packet are the
lists of committees. Are there any comments or objections?
Hearing none, next on the agenda is Other Business. I-69 Workshop on
Thursday, February 22, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. Mr. Bishop, will you bring us
up to speed?
Brian Bishop: Yes sir.
I think everyone should have received an email and an invite to the
meeting that will be held on the 22nd. We will have the folks from the
Ohio River I-69 Crossing; the Technical Advisors who are working on
that project here so we can answer questions about potential routes,
potential 41N upgrades. We intend to have that meeting at the Planning
Commission. We will use it as a workshop for continuing education for
the Planning Commission and the Board of Zoning Adjustments for the
City and the County. We have invited all Planning Commission
members, we have invited all City Commissioners and Fiscal Court
members. We just would like a private workshop so we can ask
questions and make sure everyone is up to date because I think it’s
dramatically going to affect the Planning Commission in the near future.
Our fallback plan is to have it in the Fiscal Court Room if we have
enough people; if demand is too large for our conference room. Once it
gets closer, I’ll send you guys out another email to remind you probably
about a week out or so. But that’s the plan as of right now, and I just
want to make sure everyone gets questions answered because it’s a
major impact on Henderson.
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Chairman McKee: Any questions for staff about that workshop? Is
there anything that the staff should take a look at before? Didn’t you
send out something today with videos?
Claudia Wayne: Theresa did.
Chairman McKee: Did everyone get one of those? Very good. So, it
might be important to give a little time to reviewing those before we
come to the workshop?
Brian Bishop: It certainly would.
Chairman McKee: Anything else we need to take a look at before we
get there?
Dickie Johnson: Hasn’t the City and County already kind of selected
a…
Brian Bishop: Both the City Commission and the Fiscal Court endorse
Central Corridor One (1).
Dickie Johnson: Then more than likely that’s the one that’s going to be
utilized.
Brian Bishop: I’m not going to touch that with a ten-foot (10’) pole.
David Dixon: It’s my understanding we’ve got two (3) remaining…
Brian Bishop: That’s correct.
David Dixon: Two (2) of them involve them re-doing 41N in some
fashion; dramatic fashion.
Brian Bishop: Western One (1) would actually be parallel to 41 N, it
actually would take out some of North Elm Street, my house included.
Then Western Two (2) is basically what you’re saying is an upgrade to
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41, it would be elevated and the current 41 would be basically a backage
road; a parallel road to the new I-69.
Then Central Corridor One (1) is the eastern route, most eastern route of
the three (3), and it would come behind Braxton Park, then come back
around and connect to 60. Then you would have an exit ramp going into
Green Street, and then one (1) going south to the current 41 S/Hwy
2084.
Theresa Curtis: Brian, I have this on the thumb drive if you want it.
Brian Bishop: Would you guys like to look at the videos? Would you
guys like to see those now?
Gary Gibson: I would.
Brian Bishop: I don’t think we have them on here but we can get them
off the gleaner website if you guys will give me one (1) minute. Is that
ok?
Chairman McKee: Do you want to look at it now collectively?
Gary Gibson: If there is trouble, I can wait.
Theresa Curtis: Gary is the only one that doesn’t have email to be able
to see them.
Brian Bishop: What do you guys prefer?
David Dixon: I assume they will present those at this meeting we’re
having too, right?
Brian Bishop: They will. They will be presented tonight at the Preston
Arts Center in Henderson, and tomorrow night at Bosse High School;
it’s a public meeting which is separate from what we’re going to do.
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That meeting is open to the public, our meeting is just for the Planning
Commission members and the elected officials.
Chairman McKee: Is there anyone that can’t review it on their own and
prefer that we do it here?
Gary Gibson: I can wait until the meeting.
Chairman McKee: You’re ok?
Gary Gibson: Yes, I’m ok.
Chairman McKee: Anybody else not ok?
Gary Gibson: I’ll see it on the 10 o’clock news anyway.
Chairman McKee: Ok, next on the agenda is Review of the
Subdivision Recommendations, Mr. Bishop?
Brian Bishop: Yes sir. As everyone is aware of, we have been going
through the recommendations made by TSW for our business-friendly
study, for lack of a better term.
Claudia and I have talked about this and we think it may be wise instead
of just cherry-picking the sections that TSW have made
recommendations on, is for us to collect the technical advisors and go
through the entire Subdivision Regulations because I think they won’t be
changed a lot but they could use some tweaking.
Some of the things that I think we should address is are the 3:1 lot debt
ratio, we can address the one-hundred-foot (100’) road frontage and how
much land that takes when people are subdividing lots. And we should
probably take another look at the bonding section.
So, what we have done is we have already sent out an email so all the
technical advisors know on Thursday’s when we have Site Review we
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will either be talking about Subdivision Regulations after or we will
have a meeting for those folks on Thursday morning. Because that’s
when we can get all the people together at one (1) time, if not it’s like
herding cats.
So, just wanted to give you guys and update; that’s where we are on the
recommendation from the sub reg’s.
Chairman McKee: Would it interrupt your meeting to invite any
Planning Commissioner who wanted to attend?
Brian Bishop: We can. My plan had been for us to come back with the
recommendations to the Planning Commission in a workshop format.
But, the Planning Commission members are welcomed to attend.
Chairman McKee: You invite the Planning Commissioners to attend the
Thursday morning meeting anyway, don’t you?
Brian Bishop: I don’t think everyone gets…. Theresa, does everyone get
emailed about the Preliminary Conference?
Theresa Curtis: That’s Heather.
Heather Lauderdale: No.
Chairman McKee: What’s your pleasure? Does anyone want to attend
it?
Doug Bell: I trust them to bring the recommendations back to the full
body.
Chairman McKee: Nobody? So mote it be. Is there anything else that
needs to come before the Planning Commission tonight? Yes?
Dickie Johnson: I was going to make a motion to adjourn.
Chairman McKee: We have a motion to adjourn.
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